1990

Marlin K. Loosle and Theresa L. Loosle v. First Federal Savings & Loan Association of Logan and Hilliam Abstracting and Insurance Agency, Trustee : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF JURISDICTION

The authority which confers jurisdiction on the Court to hear this Appeal is Article VIII, Section 3, Utah State Constitution; Utah Code Annotated, 78-2-2, Rule 3(i), Utah Rules of Appellate Procedure.

ISSUES

1. Whether the trial court erred by granting summary judgment in favor of defendant\respondents after making a specific finding that there were genuine issues of material fact which should be decided by a jury.

The standard of review to be applied to this issue is correctness without deference to the trial court, because the trial court, when faced with a motion for summary judgment must follow the relevant Utah civil procedure rule. Rule 56(c) of U.R.C.P. provides that the "judgment sought shall be rendered forthwith if the pleadings, depositions... and (affidavits)... show that there is no genuine issue as to any material fact and that the moving party is entitled to a judgment as a matter of law". If there is any issue of material fact, the court, as a matter of law, cannot grant a summary judgment motion.

2. Whether the trial court erred in its decision that as a matter of law, plaintiff\appellant could not sustain or establish the requisite elements of its case and therefore, did not allow

the jury to make the ultimate finding.

The standard of review to be applied to this issue is the correctness standard. In Re Infant Anonymous, 760 P.2d 916 (Utah Ct. App. 1988).

DETERMINATIVE STATUTES AND RULES

Utah Const. art. I section 10:

"In capital cases the right of trial by jury shall remain inviolate. In courts of general jurisdiction, except in capital cases, a jury shall consist of eight jurors. In courts of inferior jurisdiction a jury shall consist of four jurors. In criminal cases the verdict shall be unanimous. In civil cases three-fourths of the jurors may find a verdict. A jury in civil cases shall be waived unless demanded."

Utah Code Annotated section 78-21-2 (1953):

"All questions of fact, where the trial is by jury, other than those mentioned in the next section (78-21-3), are to be decided by the jury, and all evidence thereon is addressed them except when otherwise provided."

Utah Code Annotated section 78-21-1 (1953):

"In actions for the recovery of specific real or personal property, with or without damages or for money claimed for injuries, an issue of fact may be tried by a jury, unless a jury trial is waived or a reference is ordered."

Rule 38(a), Utah R. Civ. P.:

"(a) Right preserved. The right of trial by jury as declared by the constitution or as given by statute shall be preserved to the parties."

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

a. Nature of the case

This is an appeal from a Summary Judgment and Judgment and Decree signed by the Honorable F. L. GUNNELL, District Judge in the First Judicial District Court of Box Elder County. Said Judgments have been declared final judgments by the Court pursuant to Rule 54(b).

b. Course of the Proceedings and Disposition at the trial Court

Marlin and Theresa Loosle brought this action in the first District Court of Box Elder County to quiet title in their property against the claimed right of Defendants. Both parties moved for Summary Judgment, which Trial Court Judge Gunnell in his Findings and Ruling decided in favor of Defendant First Federal Savings and Loan and Hillam Abstracting And Insurance Agency, Trustee.

c. Relevant Facts

Appellants were owners of a house that was purchased with financing through defendant\respondent. After purchasing the home, appellants drilled a new well for water to supplement the existing water supply. Approximately eight years after purchasing the home, on the advice of defendant\respondent, appellant sought to refinance the home and found out that the home appraised for approximately twenty-four thousand dollars less than the purchase price despite many improvements and a general increase in property value in the area.

Appellants brought this action because they felt they were misrepresented by the defendant\respondent's first appraisal in 1980.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The plaintiffs established that the property in question, despite the improvements made and the fact that all property in that area rose in value, was appraised for approximately twenty-four thousand dollars less than the appraisal at the time of their purchase eight years earlier. Both appraisals were done by the defendant\respondent, who was also the lender. This lead plaintiffs to believe that their detrimental reliance on defendant\respondent coupled with negligent misrepresentation by defendant\respondent caused them monetary damages. Utah courts have established that when a person or entity is in a position of supposed expertise where it should be obvious that the person asking will rely on the information requested and furnished, that person or entity is often held liable under the doctrine of "negligent misrepresentation".

Whether the well that the plaintiff's and their neighbors drilled for water which ultimately provided culinary water for the property in question was appurtenant to the property is an ultimate fact upon which the jury would base a decision as to who should prevail in the matter concerning the well being appurtenant to the property. Ultimate facts are not to be withheld from the jury. This involves a right to a jury trial

which was denied by the court granting summary judgment.

Summary judgment is not appropriate where there is a question of fact raised by the pleadings and affidavits that is material to the resolution of the case. Summary judgment was not appropriate here because there was an issue of material fact concerning negligent misrepresentation by the defendant\respondent and whether the well drilled by plaintiff and his neighbors is appurtenant to the property as raised by the pleadings, affidavits and depositions.

ARGUMENT

I. THE TRIAL COURT COMMITTED PREJUDICIAL ERROR BY GRANTING A SUMMARY JUDGMENT IN FAVOR OF DEFENDANTS WHEN THERE EXISTED MATERIAL FACTS CONCERNING NEGLIGENT MISREPRESENTATION BY DEFENDANT AND A QUESTION AS TO WHETHER THE WELL DUG BY PLAINTIFF AND HIS NEIGHBORS WAS APPURTENANT TO THE PROPERTY.

The plaintiffs in this case had a right to a jury trial because there is a question as to whether the defendant had negligently misrepresented the value of the property the plaintiff purchased at the time of purchase. The Utah Code states in pertinent part:

"In actions for the recovery of specific real or personal property, with or without damages... an issue of fact may be tried by a jury unless a jury trial is waived..."
Utah Code Annot. section 78-21-1 (1953).

The Utah Supreme Court interpreted the same provision and had this to say:

"... It is our opinion that the above language, if given a reasonable and rational construction, must be interpreted as

declaring that all issues of fact relating to possession and right to possession of specific real or personal property may be determined by a jury unless a jury trial is waived..." Holland v Wilson, 8 Utah 2d 11, 14-15, 327 P.2d 250, 252 (1958).

More recently the Utah Supreme Court has said:

"... There is a right to a jury trial on all questions of fact in any action to determine the right to possession of real property. Holland v Wilson, 8 Utah 2d 11, 14-15, 327 P.2d 250, 252 (1958); see Utah Code Ann. section 78-21-1 (1987); Utah R. Civ. P. 38(a). The present case is clearly one to determine the right to possess real property. Therefore, the Hansens were entitled to have the question of the location of the corner determined by the judge only if that question is one of law." Hansen v Stewart, 761 P.2d 14, 15 (Utah 1988).

In the present case, there has been evidence presented that shows that there is a question as to whether the defendant negligently misrepresented the plaintiff in 1980 when they appraised the property in question for \$89,900.00. In other states the doctrine of negligent misrepresentation has been applied to banks. In California one court in Francis v Eisenmayer, 340 P.2d 54 (Cal. App. 1959), said:

"...Liability is predicated on the alleged fact that the plaintiffs have been misled by the bank's agent to their prejudice. A cause of action in tort may arise against a bank for misrepresentation of its duties and functions independent of any contractual relationship."

The trial court, when faced with a motion for summary judgment, must follow the relevant Utah civil procedure rule. Rule 56(c) of U.R.C.P. provides that the "judgment sought shall be rendered forthwith if the pleadings, depositions... and affidavits show that there is no genuine issue as to any material fact and that the moving party is entitled to a judgment as a matter of law." Thus, according to the rule, if there is any

genuine issue of material fact, the court, as a matter of law, cannot grant a summary judgment motion.

The court's role in determining whether a motion for summary judgment should be granted has been further defined and documented in recent Utah case law. According to the Utah Supreme Court, in Barlow Society v Commercial Security Bank, 723 P.2d 398 (Utah 1986); Durnham v Margetts, 571 P.2d 1332 (Utah 1977); Brower v Brown, 744 P.2d 1337 (Utah 1987), the following guidelines are to be strictly adhered to: (1) the Court must construe the facts in a light most favorable to the non-moving party, (2) summary judgment should only be granted when the matter is clear and there is no room for doubt, and (3) if there is a statute governing the exercise of summary judgment in a particular context, the statute should be followed.

Relevant to the preceding guidelines, the Utah Supreme Court in the recent case of Chapman v Primary Children's Hospital, 784 P.2d 1181 (Utah 1989), stated that "close calls" on factual issues "are for juries, not judges, to make." Id. at 1186. Thus, summary judgment is not appropriate unless the parties affidavits and other instruments make it clear that no genuine issue remains as to matters of material fact.

These guidelines are significant to the present case. The facts to this case are not clear to the point that they leave no doubt. There is a definite question as to whether the defendant negligently misrepresented the first appraisal for the value of the land. It is the plaintiffs contention that the defendant may

have represented an inflated value of the property at the time the plaintiff was securing a loan in order to make more money in interest. It is hard to see how after making many improvements to the land over an eight year stretch the value of it could decrease by approximately \$24,000.00 despite the fact that other property in the area had all increased in value.

Also at issue in this case is ownership and water rights connected to a well that plaintiff and his neighbors drilled on a neighbors property. Defendants claim that the ownership in the well is appurtenant to the property and therefore, goes with the property. Plaintiffs contend differently.

Defendants base their claim on the fact that the language contained in the deed says that all improvements now or hereafter erected on the property, and all easements, rights, appurtenances, rents, royalties, mineral oil and gas rights and profits, water, water rights and water stock, and all fixtures now or hereafter attached to the property... shall become part of, or go with, the property.

Defendants further claim that without the rights to the water coming from this well, the property would suffer a great loss in value because there would not be any usable culinary water to the house. They seem to be forgetting, however, that when plaintiffs purchased the home, they purchased the same culinary water rights that would exist, and did in fact exist, before the well. And they purchased the home for approximately \$24,000.00 more than the home is now worth with the rights to the

new well.

Plaintiffs contend that the rights to the well can and should be separate from the rest of the property. In Utah, water rights can be separated from the land upon which they have been used and are considered independent of any rights in land. Whitmore v Salt Lake City, 89 Utah 387, 57 P.2d 726 (1936); but the water user must connect himself by title to the right he claims. Salina Creek Irr. Co. v Salina Stock Co., 7 Utah 456, 27 p. 578 (1891), aff'd 163 U.S. 109 (1896). The user must either receive the right through deed or similar instrument, or petition with the State Engineer for appropriation of the right. Utah Code Ann. sections 73-3-1 and 73-5-13 (1953); Salina, supra..

In the present case, the plaintiff has filed for appropriation of the rights to that water with the State Engineer and is at this time still waiting for the results to that petition.

The issue or controversy over whether the defendant negligently misrepresented the value of the property to the plaintiff and the question of whether the rights to the water in the new well are appurtenant to the property are material issues of fact that should be decided by a jury after having testimony and evidence presented to them.

II. SUMMARY JUDGMENT WAS IMPROPER BECAUSE THERE WAS A GENUINE ISSUE OF FACT CONCERNING WHETHER THE PLAINTIFFS HAD ESTABLISHED AND MET THE REQUISITE ELEMENTS CONCERNING THEIR CASE.

In Dugan v Jones, 615 P.2d 1239, the Utah Supreme Court outlined the elements necessary to establish an action in deceit based on fraudulent misrepresentation. The elements outlined are: A representation; concerning a presently existing material fact; which was false; which representor either knew to be false or made recklessly knowing that he had insufficient knowledge upon which to base such representation; for purpose of inducing other party to act upon it; that the other party, acting reasonably and in ignorance of its falsity, did in fact rely upon it; and was thereby induced to act; to his injury and damage. Id. at 1240.

It is a question of fact whether the defendant misrepresented the value of the property at the time of purchase and it is a known fact that the plaintiff suffered damages in the approximate amount of \$24,000.00 not including interest that would also have been paid over time, pushing the amount of damage much higher. It seems, therefore, that if the elements outlined by the Utah Supreme Court in Dugan are not satisfied, there is at least a question as to whether they could be satisfied.

The court in Dugan also held that, "a vendee of real property, in absence of facts putting him on notice, has no duty to investigate to determine whether vendor has misrepresented the area conveyed". Id. at 1240. From this it is evident that at the time of the first appraisal, the plaintiff did not have the necessary responsibility to double check to make sure the defendant was not misrepresenting him. Whether the defendant was

indeed misrepresenting the plaintiff is a fact that must now be decided on by a jury.

In Norton v Blackham, 669 P.2d 857,859 (Utah 1983), the Utah Supreme Court found that "Summary Judgment is appropriate if the pleadings, Affidavits and other submissions of the parties show that no genuine issue of material fact exists..." In the case at bar, the pleadings on their face show a genuine issue of material fact. The deposition of the plaintiffs show contested material facts.

Because there are issues of material fact, this case should not have been decided by summary judgment. The Utah Supreme Court set out general parameters further explaining when a motion for summary judgment should and should not be granted in Durnham v Margetts, 571 P.2d 1332 (Utah 1977). In that case the Court said:

"Summary judgment... should not be done on conjecture, but only when the matter is clear; and in the case of doubt, the doubt should be resolved in allowing the challenged party opportunity of at least attempting to prove his right to recover... (U)nless the court is able to conclude that there is no dispute on material facts... the court should not summarily... render judgment... as a matter of law." Id. at 1338. (Emphasis added).

The matters in this case are not clear, and therefore, the outcome of this case should ultimately be decided by a jury.

CONCLUSION

When a person seeks to buy property and has the bank from which he intends to borrow the money do the appraisal, that


person usually trusts that the appraisal is accurate. But when a person buys the property and finds out approximately eight years later that the value of the property has decreased by over 25%, despite many improvements to the property and a general increase in property values in the area, he begins to wonder if the value illustrated by the first appraisal was indeed accurate. This is what has happened in the case at hand.

The plaintiffs in this case, Marlin and Theresa Loosle, contend that they were negligently misrepresented by the defendants and as a result, they suffered damages. Unfortunately, the defendants were granted a summary judgment despite the fact that material issues of fact exist.

Summary judgment is not appropriate if there are issues of material fact, and as has been outlined, there are such issues in this case involving not only the negligent misrepresentation, but also whether the well dug by the plaintiff and his neighbors is appurtenant to the property. Therefore, the outcome of this trial should have been decided by a jury, not the judge on a summary judgment.

The plaintiff respectfully asks that the trial court be reversed and judgment entered in favor of the plaintiff. Alternatively, the plaintiff asks that the Supreme Court reverse the summary judgment granted by the trial court and remand for a new trial based on the material issues that remain unresolved.