1990

Marlin K. Loosle and Theresa L. Loosle v. First Federal Savings & Loan Association of Logan, Hillam Abstracting and Insurance Agency, Trustee, (Appellees), All Pro Real Estate Incorporated, a Utah Corporation, Quality Builders Incorporated, a Utah Corporation, and William C. Packer dba Quality Builders : Brief of Appellee

Utah Supreme Court

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

### **SUMMARY OF ARGUMENTS**

First Federal submits four (4) arguments to the Court. The first is that Loosles' Brief is totally devoid of references to the Record or the Transcript and fails to comply with the Utah Rules of Appellate Procedure and consequently the Trial Court Judgments must be affirmed or the appeal dismissed with prejudice.

First Federal next argues that the Trial Court correctly granted Summary Judgment on Loosles' claims of misrepresentation. The uncontroverted testimony of Loosles as cited herein and to the Trial Court shows there could have been no misrepresentation from First Federal and no reliance by Loosles --- based upon Loosles' belated claim that First Federal's appraisal is erroneous. Loosles knew nothing of the appraisal for eight (8) years after closing. Loosles want lenders to be guarantors of property values. Loosles provided no evidence whatsoever to the Trial Court nor do they provide any evidence in their Brief that First Federal made any untrue representations to Loosles, that Loosles relied upon it and even if Loosles relied on First Federal's appraisal Loosles provided no evidence First Federal's 1980 appraisal was wrong. Loosles' own testimony says they have no cause of action and their brief raises no question with the Trial Court's Order. R. pp. 194-199. Even if the Trial Court were not affirmed on this basis,

First Federal argues the statute of limitations bars Loosles action.

The Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Judgment and Decree entered August 1, 1990 in the quiet title action were supported by substantial, competent evidence. R. pp. 302-317. This evidence, construed in the light most favorable to the Trial Court's ruling, establishes the intent to have water rights appurtenant to the Property and pledged to First Federal. Loosles have failed to marshall the evidence sustaining this Judgment by the Court and to show that such evidence does not sustain the Court's Judgment. Failing so to do, the Judgment of the Trial Court should be affirmed.

First Federal also requests attorney's fees in defending this appeal either because of the contractual provisions of the Promissory Note and Trust Deed between Loosles and First Federal or because of the failure to comply with the Utah Rules of Appellate Procedure. Tr. Exhibit Nos. 5 and 6.

### ARGUMENT

#### I

LOOSLES' BRIEF DOES NOT COMPLY WITH THE UTAH RULES OF APPELLATE PROCEDURE, RULES 24(a)(7), 24(a)(9), 24(e), AND 24(k) BECAUSE IT PROVIDES NO REFERENCE WHATEVER TO THE TRIAL COURT RECORD AND PROCEEDINGS, AND THE TRIAL COURT JUDGMENTS SHOULD BE AFFIRMED OR LOOSLES' APPEAL SHOULD BE DISMISSED WITH PREJUDICE.

Rule 24(a)(7), URAP provides:

All statements of fact and references to the proceedings below shall be supported by citations to the record.

Rule 24(a)(9), URAP provides:

The argument shall contain the contentions and reasons of the appellant with respect to the issues presented, with citations to the authorities, statutes, and parts of the record relied on.

And Rule 24(e), URAP further provides:

References shall be made to the pages of the original record as paginated pursuant to Rule 11(b), to pages of the reporter's transcript, or to pages of any statement of the evidence or proceedings or agreed statement prepared pursuant to Rule 11(f) or 11(g). References to exhibits shall include exhibit numbers. If reference is made to evidence and admissibility of which is in controversy, reference shall be made to the pages of the transcript at which the evidence was identified, offered, and received or rejected.

Rule 24(k), URAP states:

. . . Briefs which are not in compliance may be disregarded or stricken, on motion or sua sponte by the court, and the court may assess attorney fees against the offending lawyer.

The Rules are clear. There is no ambiguity. The purpose of an appeal is to frame and articulate issues. Loosles' Brief neither frames nor articulates and makes a meaningful response by First Federal very difficult. If Loosles file a Reply Brief and suddenly provide numerous citations to the record as the basis for their positions, First Federal is placed in a totally unfair position, not having had opportunity to reply to the same.

The contents of the Loosles' Brief are consistent in terms of non-compliance with Rules 24(a)(7), 24(a)(9) and 24(e) URAP:

1. Course of the Proceedings - No references to the record.
2. Relevant Facts ----- No references to the record.
3. Summary of Argument ----- No references to the record.

4. Argument. ----- No references to the record.

5. Conclusion ----- No references to the record.

The Addendum to the Loosle Brief is neither incorporated by reference nor cited. Issues cannot be framed absent reference to a record that shows certain facts were in evidence and considered by the Trial Court. Then the Supreme Court can evaluate the law and the facts. But absent a showing of where the facts relied upon are to be found in the record there are no issues. As the Court of Appeals stated in Christensen v. Munns, 812 P.2d 69 (Utah App., 1991):

Appellants' brief contains . . . no citations to the record, no legal authorities and no analysis whatsoever. Their brief is not in compliance with our rules which require the brief of the appellant to contain an argument. . . Thus, we decline to address this issue and assume the correctness of the judgment below. . . At 72.

. . .

Further, appellants challenge is that the trial court's finding is unsupported by the evidence in the record. But, appellants have failed to marshal the evidence as required by our standard of review . . . At 73.

The New Mexico Supreme Court dealt with this same issue in Tofoya v. Tofoya, 500 P.2d 409 (N.M., 1972), when it specifically held:

There is not one single reference to a transcript page in the entire brief in chief and the references to the transcript wholly fail to comply with the requirements of Rule 15(6), 16(b) and (16(e)), supra. Accordingly, we will not review the record or consider the claimed errors relied upon for reversal. At 409. (Citations omitted)

Also see Methola v. County of Eddy, 629 P.2d 350 (N.M. App., 1981).

Specifically, Loosles state in their argument, "there has been evidence presented that shows that there is a question as to whether the defendant negligently misrepresented the plaintiff in 1980 when they appraised the property in question for \$89,900.00." (Loosle Brief, Page 8, Line 17.) Was this in the Trial Court record? What was the "evidence presented"? Which "evidence"? Where is the "evidence" found? One can only guess, assume or speculate.

The Loosle Brief 'Statement of the Case' under 'Relevant Facts' says, "Approximately eight years after purchasing the home, on the advice of defendant/respondent, appellant sought to refinance the home and found out that the home appraised for approximately twenty-four thousand dollars less than the purchase price despite many improvements and a general increase in property value in the area." (Loosle Brief, Page 5, Line 21.) The statement is replete with factual allegations but that is all they are --- allegations. No facts or citations are presented that these assertions are found in verified, admissible evidence in the Record. Almost every paragraph of the Loosle Brief likewise contains unsubstantiated claims of "facts" in evidence at the Trial Court which were not in evidence as represented by Loosles' Brief.

Loosles continue to argue, "There is a definite question as to whether the defendant negligently misrepresented the first appraisal for the value of the land." (Loosle Brief, Page 9, Line 24.) First Federal represented nothing to Loosles. They prepared an "in house" appraisal in the ordinary course of business.

Affidavit of Paul Petersen. R. pp. 94-96. In Dirks v. Cornwell, 754 P.2d 946 (Utah App., 1988), the Utah Appellate Court stated:

We note initially that defendants' brief on appeal fails to conform to Rule 24(a) of the Rules of the Utah Court of Appeals because there are no citations to the record. Rule 24(a) requires that each party make a concise statement of the facts and cite to the pages in the record where those facts are supported. We have previously ruled that if a party fails to adhere to this rule, "the court will assume the correctness of the judgment below. 'This Court need not, and will not, consider any facts not properly cited to, or [sic] supported by, the record.' " (quoting Koulis and Uckerman cases hereafter cited) . . . We could, therefore, *sua sponte* disregard defendants' brief on appeal and assume the correctness of the judgment below. However, we also affirm the trial court's judgment on the merits. At 947-948.

Since the case involved no issues of fact, the Court dealt with the merits. But it appears since Loosles are asking for consideration of facts in their appeal, the holding of Dirks regarding a deficient brief means the Trial Court decision should be affirmed. In Koulis v. Standard Oil Company of California, 746 P.2d 1182 (Utah App., 1987), the Appellate Court held that, "If a party fails to make a concise statement of the facts and citation of the pages in the record where those facts are supported, the court will assume the correctness of the judgment below." (Citations omitted) At 1184. The Loosle Brief is identical in rule non-compliance with the briefs submitted in the Dirks and Koulis cases, which mandates the affirmance of the Trial Court. Fackrell v. Fackrell, 740 P.2d 1318, 1319 (Utah, 1987); Trees v. Lewis, 738 P.2d 612, 612-12 (Utah, 1987). See also White River Shale Oil Corp v. Pub. Serv. Comm'n of Utah, 700 P.2d 1088, 1089

n.1 (Utah, 1985); State v. Tucker, 657 P.2d 755, 756-57 (Utah, 1982).

The Advisory Committee Note to Utah Rules of Appellate Procedure on Rule 24 also requires each party submitting a brief to set forth a properly documented argument: "The argument shall contain the contentions of the appellant with respect to the issues presented and the reasons therefore, with citations to the authorities, statutes, and parts of the record relied on. " Loosles provide none of this in their Brief.

Loosles argue about property values, deeds, easements, a well, **appraisals**, culinary water, misrepresentations, trust deeds, improvements, water appropriations and property values without one reference to an Exhibit, an Affidavit, a Deposition, or the Record. In State in Interest of M.S. v. Salata, 806 P.2d 1216, (Utah App., 1991), the Court of Appeals wrote, "Salata's failure to specify in his brief an instance of alleged error by the trial court and his failure to refer to relevant authority leave his argument unsupported, and we decline to consider it." At 1218.

First Federal has prepared its Brief with citations to the Record. If Loosles are now "flushed out" in their Reply Brief and cite all the previously "unknown" places in the record from which their argument and "facts" are based, the appellate process becomes a "cat and mouse" game that is neither efficient nor fair. "In the case at bar, the pleadings on their face show a genuine issue of **material fact**. The deposition of the Plaintiffs show contested material facts." Loosle Brief, p. 13. line 6. Which paragraphs of

the pleadings; which factual issues; where in the 230-plus pages of Loosles' depositions? Loosles disclose nothing in their brief but such conclusory statements that make response very difficult without citation to specifics and to the Record.

As the Utah Supreme Court stated in Uckerman v. Uckerman, 588 P.2d 142 (Utah, 1978), "This Court need not, and will not, consider any facts not properly cited to, or supported by, the record." At 144. This Court should not condone non-compliance with critical, fundamental rules of appellate procedure. Loosles' failures go to the very essence of the appellate process of framing issues. The Court should affirm the ruling of the Trial Court or the appeal should be dismissed with prejudice.

## II

THE TRIAL COURT CORRECTLY GRANTED SUMMARY JUDGMENT TO FIRST FEDERAL BECAUSE LOOSLES COULD NOT RELY ON FIRST FEDERAL'S 1980 "IN HOUSE" APPRAISAL, WHEN LOOSLES FIRST LEARNED OF THE APPRAISAL IN 1988, WHICH APPRAISAL LOOSLES CLAIM CONSTITUTED THE MISREPRESENTATION.

The Loosles' claim of misrepresentation is totally lacking in the legal and factual allegations required to establish a cause of action. Loosles provide not one shred of evidence that First Federal misrepresented anything to Loosles and that Loosles relied upon the same. Loosles state in their Brief, "Appellants (Loosles) brought this action because they felt they were misrepresented by the defendant/respondent's (First Federal) first appraisal in 1980." Loosle Brief, p. 6, lines 1-3.



A. THE APPRAISAL PERFORMED BY FIRST FEDERAL WAS FOR INTERNAL AUDITING PURPOSES ONLY IN MAKING THE LOAN TO THE LOOSLES; LOOSLES DID NOT KNOW FIRST FEDERAL HAD AN APPRAISAL IN ITS FILE UNTIL 1988 AND THEREFORE, THE LOOSLES DID NOT RELY UPON ANY REPRESENTATIONS MADE IN FIRST FEDERAL'S APPRAISAL.

Loosles allege in their original and Verified Complaint dated April 28, 1988 that First Federal performed an appraisal appraising the Harper Ward property at \$87,000.00 in September, 1980. Loosles allege that they "relied" upon First Federal's appraisal in accepting the value of the real property. See paragraphs 8 and 13 of Loosles' Verified Complaint. R. pp. 1-7. Since these paragraphs are deleted in the Loosles' Amended Verified Complaint, Loosles' Verified Amended Complaint contains no specific allegation of misrepresentation or fraud against First Federal, but only against the Packers. R. pp. 166-174. The only colorable allegation in the Amended Verified Complaint is that First Federal "obtained an appraisal of the real property and the fair market value of the real property was in the sum of \$87,000.00 that it would be a good investment." Amended Complaint, paragraph 12. R. pp. 166-174.

The elements of an action in deceit based on fraudulent misrepresentation are as follows:

- (1) A representation;
- (2) Concerning a presently existing material fact;
- (3) which was false;
- (4) which the representor either (a) knew to be false, or (b) made recklessly, knowing that he had insufficient knowledge upon which to base such representations;
- (5) for the purpose of inducing the other party to act upon it;
- (6) that the other party, acting reasonably and in ignorance of its falsity;

- (7) did in fact rely upon it;
- (8) and was thereby induced to act;
- (9) to his injury and damage.

Dugan v. Jones, 615 P.2d 1239, 1246 (Utah, 1980).

In order for there to be a finding of fraud/misrepresentation by First Federal, Loosles must demonstrate the existence of all nine (9) elements. Taylor v. Gasor, Inc., 607 P.2d 293, 294 (Utah, 1980); Horton v. Horton, 695 P.2d 102, 105 (Utah, 1984). Loosles assert in their Complaint and Amended Complaint that First Federal made a representation as to the value of the property to them through the appraisal.

Theresa Loosle relates what First Federal (Paul Peterson) told her:

A. Well, he told us that, you know, this was the selling price for the home. And he went through the whole thing with us. This was the selling price, this was what First Federal was willing to assume, you know, and go along with us.

T.L. Dep., 1989, p. 7, lines 13-17.

Loosles made a decision to exchange their home in Perry and contacted Jeff and Kevin Packer of All-Pro Realty concerning the exchange. Jeff and Kevin Packer showed Loosles the Property several times prior to the Loosles deciding to purchase the Harper Ward Property. M.L. Dep., 1989, p. 14, lines 10-23. The listing price for the Harper Ward Property was \$89,900.00. M.L. Dep., 1989, p. 16, line 15. Mr. and Mrs. Loosle discussed the value of the Harper Ward Property with Kevin Packer and Jeff Packer and Packers informed them \$89,900.00 was the sale price of the home and that is what it was worth. M.L. Dep., 1989, p. 16, lines 18-20 and

T.L. Dep., 1989, p. 9, lines 15-17. Marlin and Theresa Loosle believed and accepted the information they received from Kevin Packer and Jeff Packer regarding the value of the Property. Mrs. Loosle relates what she and her husband did after looking at the home:

. . . and we both liked it. So we didn't question the price. You know. We didn't dicker. We didn't do anything. We just trusted him (Kevin Packer).

T.L. Dep., 1989, p. 9, lines 15-17.

The Loosles relied upon the information they received from Kevin and Jeff Packer regarding the value of the home and signed the Earnest Money And Offer To Purchase on September 10, 1989. M.L. Dep., 1989, p. 16, line 22; p. 28, lines 20-23.

At no time prior to the execution of the Earnest Money And Offer To Purchase agreement did Loosles ever contact or receive any representations or information from First Federal or any of its agents. M.L. Dep., 1989, p. 47, lines 17-24; p. 48, lines 1-7.

Q. Would it be a fair statement that in terms of the price of your home and the price of the home in Harper Ward you pretty much relied on what Kevin Packer had told you?

A. Yes, we did.

Q. Was there anyone else that you'd relied upon?

A. No.

T.L. Dep., 1989, p. 10, lines 6-11.

See also T.L. Dep., 1989, p. 23, line 5. After the Earnest Money Agreement had been signed the Loosles applied for a loan from First Federal. M.L. Dep., 1989, Dep. Exhibit No. 2. The Loosles signed the remaining loan documentation on September 16, 1989. M.L. Dep., 1989, Dep. Exhibit Nos. 8 and 9.

Clearly, at no time prior to the Earnest Money Agreement being executed had First Federal or its agents made any representations to Loosles. They had no contact with them! Mr. Loosle has no recollection of meeting or talking to Mr. Petersen until after signing the Earnest Money. M.L. Dep., 1989, p. 29, lines 4-10, Dep. Exhibit No. 1. Jeff and Kevin Packer made the only representations concerning the value of the Harper Ward Property. In fact, Plaintiff Marlin K. Loosle acknowledges in his deposition:

Q. You knew when you went into First Federal Savings in 1980 to sign the loan documents that you already had signed a binding, legal contract?

A. Yes, uh-huh.

M.L. Dep., 1989, p. 61, line 5.

Thus, a binding, valid contract had been entered into by the Loosles to exchange the homes and property prior to any conversations or meetings with First Federal or any of its agents.

When Loosles agreed to exchange the homes and signed the Earnest Money And Offer To Purchase on September 10, 1980 no appraisal had been shown to them. They did not request one. The Earnest Money was not contingent on any appraisal. T.L. Dep., 1989, p. 14, lines 16-18. The Loosles had merely relied upon the representations made by Jeff and Kevin Packer and their own opinion ". . . We felt it was a good price". T.L. Dep., 1989, p. 17, line 12. Therefore, the essential element of a representation being communicated to the Loosles cannot be met as a matter of fact or as a matter of law. Loosles' Brief does not argue otherwise. Because Loosles cannot show a representation by First Federal concerning the value of the Harper Ward Property prior to them signing their

contract to acquire the home, an action for fraudulent misrepresentation cannot be pursued against First Federal and the Trial Court correctly ruled. The Loosles had already acted, there could be no reliance.

Loosles allege that First Federal induced Loosles to acquire the Property by performing an appraisal of the Property at \$87,000.00. . . . "at the time of the first appraisal the Plaintiff (Loosles) did not have the necessary responsibility to double check to make sure the Defendant (First Federal) was not misrepresenting him." Loosles' Brief, p. 12, lines 23-26. Loosles claim in the Verified Complaint that they relied upon that 1980 appraisal but at Marlin Loosle's deposition he states:

Q. Did you ever know that First Federal had done an appraisal when you got your first loan?

A. No.

Q. You did not then know that First Federal had done any type of an appraisal in connection with the loan at the time you purchased the home?

A. No.

M.L. Dep., 1989, p. 38, lines 5-11.

Q. So your first knowledge that First Federal had even done an appraisal would have been in 1988; is that correct?

A. In 1988, uh-huh.

M.L. Dep., 1989, p. 43, lines 10-13.

Mrs. Loosle's knowledge and time frame of knowledge of a First Federal appraisal is identical to that of her husband. See T.L. Dep., 1989, p. 15, lines 19-22.

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